
Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru 
(Chamoru Land Trust Commission) 

  P.O. Box 2950 Hagåtña, Guåhan 96932 Phone: 649-5263 Ext. 400   Fax: 649-5383 

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero 
Governor  

Joshua F. Tenorio 
Lieutenant Governor  

Commission Members 

G. Pika Fejeran 
Chairwoman 

Joseph I. Cruz 
Vice-Chairman 

Amanda L.G. Santos 
Commissioner 

Austin J. Duenas 
 Commissioner 

Shawntel L. Techaira 
 Commissioner 

Jack E. Hattig III 
Administrative Director 

Rev. 02/4/2019 

REGULAR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Department of Land Management Conference Room 

3rd Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning, Guam 
Thursday, April 18, 2019 

Regular Board Meeting 1:00PM 

Public Notice: The Guam Daily Post on April 11, 2019 and April 16, 2019 

1:00PM 

1:05PM 

1:10PM 

 Dumanal, Elicia Mendiola – Renewal of Survey Authorization

2:30PM 

 Muna, Felix and Aguon, Tomasa – Recognition as original pre-occupier

3:30PM 

4:00PM 

4:15PM 

4:30PM 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. OLD BUSINESS
1. Constituent Matters – Tabled from March 21, 2019

a. Requests for Addendums – Correction of Lot Descriptions
 McDaniel, Teresita Mendiola
 Mesa, Annie I.
 Quichocho, Pedro Nauta
 Sablan, Emily Guerrero

b. Requests for Relocation 
 Faria, Frances
 Siguenza, Annie C.

c. Other requests

  Quichocho, Juan N. and Rosita E. – Tax Waiver
  Sandlin, Edward Lee – Beneficiary Relinquishment

2. Administrative Matters
a. Pre-Moratorium Lease List
b. GHC MOU
c. Cannabis Cultivation

IV. NEW BUSINESS
1. Constituent Matters

a. Requests for Lease
 Nededog, Christianna Jean Sarmiento
 Toves, Antonio (Request Utility Authorization)

b. Requests for Clearing and Grading
 Janz, Teresita Castro
 Gagan, Shirley Pangelinan
 Fejeran, Kenneth Santos (Request to Build)

c. Other Requests

2. Administrative Matters
a. Media Policy
b. Switched or transferred leases
c. c. Proposal from UOG regarding boundary with hatchery

V. PUBLIC COMMENT 

VI. FINANCIAL REPORT 
1. FY 2019 Update
2. FY 2020 Proposed Budget

VII. COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS

VIII. ADJOURNMENT
Next Meeting-Thursday, May 2, 2019; 4:00PM 



Constituent 
Matters
A. Request for Addendums - Correction of Lot

Descriptions

MCDANIEL, TERESITA MENDIOLA

MESA, ANNIE M.I.

QUICHOCHO, PEDRO NAUTA

SABLAN, EMILY GUERRERO

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru

(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)



1. FACTS:

a. Location: 7153 Vigo

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 

TERESITA MENDIOLA MCDANIEL

b. Lot Size / Lease Type: 1,900.00 square meters Agriculture

c. Lease Instrument Number: Doc# 829657 12/1/2011

d. Complaint/Issue: Requesting for Addendum to read new lot number 7153-11-NEW-1 Vigo IN

HOUSE APPROVE map.

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: March 28, 2007 8:45 AM
b. Application Number: 006700
c. Interviewed on October 13, 2011
d. Survey authorization issued on Nov. 1, 2011, Jan. 25, 2012, & Aug,. 21, 2012. IN

HOUSE MAP APPROVE 7/1/2013 BY Acting Director David V. Camacho. Survey was
done by Meliton S. Santos.

e. NOTE: Emelia I Gogue submitted a letter requesting to give a portion of her property
to the sister Teresita M. McDaniel on October 18, 2011 and was approved by Director
Monte Mafnas Oct. 30, 2011.

3. RECOMMENDATION
Motion to approve Addendum to be reprinted to read Lot 7153-11 NEW-1 and also requesting for Bldg
Permit from DPW.

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

COMPILED BY LN 2/20/2019 

TERESITA M. MCDANIEL 
1 

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight





I 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 

ANNIE M. I. MESA

1. FACTS:

a. Location: Lot 10122-R18 Dededo

b. Lot Size / Lease Type: .50 acre Residential Lease

c. Lease Instrument Number: Lease in file not record

d. Complaint/Issue: Requesting for additional a

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 7, 199510:45 AM

b. Application Number:   00231
c. Interviewed on September 21,2000
d. Survey authorization issued on March 8, 2012, Survey was completed by Paul Santos on

March 29, 2012 

3. RECOMMENDATION:
Motion to approve Addendum to make correction on lot description as for recorded map Doc 636087
April 11, 2001 for Lot 10122-21 Dededo an area of 2,023.+/- square meters Dededo

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

COMPILED BY LN 2/20/2019 

ANNIE M.I MESA 
1 

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight









 

 

 

 

  

 

STAFF REPORT 

EMILY GUERRERO SABLAN 



Constituent 
Matters
B. Request for Relocation 

FARIA, FRANCES

SIGUENZA, ANNIE C.

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru

(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)





=



L10123-3-R10 DEDEDO (NCS ROAD) 





xi. LUP Approval dated October 25, 1979
xii. LUP Agreement under Ana C. Siguenza for Haligi, Sinajana

1. LUP #37-Sinajana
2. September 1, 1980 -August 31, 1981
3. 1 acre

xiii. LUP Renewal under Jose S.A. Siguenza for Haligi, Sinajana
1. September 1, 1981-August31, 1982

xiv. LUP Renewal under Jose S.A. and Ana C. Siguenza
1. September 1, 1983 -August 31, 1984

xv. LUP Renewal under Jose S. A. Siguenza for Haligi, Sinajana
1. Lot 101, Unit #4, Map #34

xvi. December 4, 1958
1. LUP Agreement to continue using property

xvii. LUP Agreement
1. September 1, 1985 -August 31, 1986

h. July 11, 1995 - Applicant, Jesse Cruz Siguenza
i. Obtained a utility authorization under CL TC-UT-230
ii. Lot #3470 Chalan Pago
iii. LUP #37-Sinajana under Jose S.A. Siguenza

i. September 18, 1996 -Renewal in lieu of July 11, 1995

j. November 26, 2002 -Lease issued to Ana Cruz Siguenza for a Portion of Lot 3443 for .50 
subject to survey

RECOMMENDATION: Our recommendation is to move Ms. Annie Cruz Siguenza to a 

property within CL T inventory because her current living area is on the Ramirez family 
private property. 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

COMPILED BY JC · 02/11/2019 

ANNIE CRUZ SIGUENZA 

2 





Constituent 
Matters
C. Other Matters

DUMANAL, ELICIA MENDIOLA

QUICHOCHO, JUAN N. AND ROSITA E.

SANDLIN, EDWARD LEE

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru

(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)







jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight









Administrative
Matters
A. Pre-Moratorium Lease List

B. Guam Housing Corporation MOU

C. Cannibus Cultivation

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru

(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)



ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru
(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)

A. Pre-Morator ium Lease List















































______________________________________________________________________________ 
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
COMPILED BY CLTC STAFF ∙ 04/12/2019  

 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 
 

 
Bertha Benavente Aldan  

 
 
A. FACTS: 

1. Location:  Lot 4, Block 19, Tract 10316, Municipality of Dededo 
2. Lot Size / Lease Type: 2,023 +/- sq.m. 
3. Lease Instrument No. NA  Signing Date:  NA 
4. Pre-Occupier: No 
5. Surveyed: 273FY2015 under Ray Cruz, Map Doc. No. 904824 
 

Complaint/Issue:  Pre-moratorium Lease Review 
1995 Applicants with Transfers not in Accordance with PL 23-38 

TRANSFER OF APPLICATION RIGHTS 
 
B. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 
 

  1. ORIGINAL APPLICANT – Norman Castro Aldan 
a. Application Date and Time:  December 2, 1995 at 11:50AM 
b. Numerical Sequence:  0000258 
c. Application Type:  R 
d. Priority:  1 
 

 2. TRANSFER INFORMATION – Request to transfer to wife, Bertha B. Aldan 
 a. Date of Request: September 26, 2014 

a. Date Transfer Approved:  October 10, 2014 
b. Approving Official:  Not indicated 

 
  3. MORATORIUM LEASE INFORMATION  

  a. Signature Date of Director: January 30, 2018 
b. Signature Date of Applicant:  April 4, 2018 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



______________________________________________________________________________ 
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
COMPILED BY CLTC STAFF ∙ 04/12/2019  

 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 
 

 
Clint Shawn Toves Materne 

 
 
A. FACTS: 

1. Location:  Lot 8, Block 3REM, Tract 100C, Municipality of Dededo 
2. Lot Size / Lease Type: 2,023 +/- sq.m. 
3. Lease Instrument No. NA  Signing Date:  NA 
4. Pre-Occupier: No 
5. Surveyed: Pending survey completion  
 

Complaint/Issue:  Pre-moratorium Lease Review 
Applicant is in accordance with the law under PL23-38, Section 5.8 

 
B. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 
 

  1. ORIGINAL APPLICANT – Jesus Delgado Materne 
a. Application Date and Time:  December 2, 1995 at 5:00PM 
b. Numerical Sequence:  0000597 
c. Application Type:  R 
d. Priority:  1 
 

2. TRANSFER INFORMATION – Original benefactor assigned was son, Clint 
Materne however during that time of death, Clint Materne was still a minor 
therefore his mother was granted the rights to take over until such time Clint 
Materne becomes of age 

 a. Date of Request: 09/17/1999 
a. Date Transfer Approved:  04/21/2004 
b. Approving Official:  Not indicated 

 
  3. MORATORIUM LEASE INFORMATION  

  a. Signature Date of Director: April 18, 2018 
b. Signature Date of Applicant:  April 25, 2018  

 
 
 
 

  



______________________________________________________________________________ 
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
COMPILED BY CLTC STAFF ∙ 04/12/2019  

 

 
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 
Staff Report 

 

 
Colleen Grace Quinata 

 
 
A. FACTS: 

1. Location:  Lot 10171-15, Municipality of Dededo 
2. Lot Size / Lease Type: 4,047 +/- sq.m. 
3. Lease Instrument No. NA  Signing Date:  NA 
4. Pre-Occupier: No 
5. Surveyed: Pending survey completion  
 

Pre-moratorium Lease Review 
1995 Applicants with Transfers not in Accordance with PL 23-38 

TRANSFER OF APPLICATION RIGHTS 
 
B. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 
 

  1. ORIGINAL APPLICANT – Sandra Cruz Mesa 
a. Application Date and Time:  December 9, 1995 at 3:35PM 
b. Numerical Sequence:  830 
c. Application Type:  R 
d. Priority:  1 
 

2. TRANSFER INFORMATION – Request to transfer to daughter, Colleen 
Grace Quinata 

 a. Date of Request: 08/08/2017 
a. Date Transfer Approved:  08/10/2017 
b. Approving Official:  David Camacho 

 
  3. MORATORIUM LEASE INFORMATION  

  a. Signature Date of Director: April 16, 2018 
b. Signature Date of Applicant:  April 19, 2018  

 

  
 

 

 



______________________________________________________________________________ 
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
COMPILED BY CLTC STAFF ∙ 04/12/2019  

 

 

 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 
 

 
Chastity Leon Guerrero Tainatongo 

 
 
A. FACTS: 

1. Location:  Lot 505-15, Municipality of Merizo 
2. Lot Size / Lease Type: 1,244 +/- sq.m. 
3. Lease Instrument No. NA  Signing Date:  NA 
4. Pre-Occupier: No 
5. Surveyed: Original survey completed, pending retracement   
 

Pre-moratorium Lease Review 
1995 Applicants with Transfers not in Accordance with PL 23-38 

TRANSFER OF APPLICATION RIGHTS 
 
B. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 
 

  1. ORIGINAL APPLICANT – Donny Jay Tainatongo 
a. Application Date and Time:  December 4, 1995 at 8:02AM 
b. Numerical Sequence:  607 
c. Application Type:  R 
d. Priority:  1 
 

2. TRANSFER INFORMATION – Request to transfer to wife, Chastity Leon 
Guerrero Tainatongo 

 a. Date of Request: 04/10/2018 
a. Date Transfer Approved:  04/13/2018 
b. Approving Official:  David Camacho 

 
  3. MORATORIUM LEASE INFORMATION  

  a. Signature Date of Director: April 30, 2018 
b. Signature Date of Applicant:  May 1, 2018  

 

  



______________________________________________________________________________ 
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
COMPILED BY CLTC STAFF ∙ 04/12/2019  

 

 
 
 
 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 
 

 
Cherylynn Tudela Eay 

 
 
A. FACTS: 

1. Location:  Lot 16, Block 3REM, Tract 100C, Municipality of Dededo 
2. Lot Size / Lease Type: 1,944 +/- sq.m. 
3. Lease Instrument No. NA  Signing Date:  NA 
4. Pre-Occupier: No 
5. Surveyed: Pending survey completion    
 

Pre-moratorium Lease Review 
1995 Applicants with Transfers not in Accordance with PL 23-38 

TRANSFER OF APPLICATION RIGHTS 
 
B. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 
 

  1. ORIGINAL APPLICANT – Isaias Tenorio Eay  
a. Application Date and Time:  December 6, 1995 at 12:19PM 
b. Numerical Sequence:  1467 
c. Application Type:  R 
d. Priority:  1 
 

2. TRANSFER INFORMATION – Request to transfer to niece, Cherylynn 
Tudela Eay  

 a. Date of Request: 9/26/2017 
a. Date Transfer Approved:  4/3/2018 
b. Approving Official:  David Camacho 

 
  3. MORATORIUM LEASE INFORMATION  

  a. Signature Date of Director: April 30, 2018 
b. Signature Date of Applicant:  May 4, 2018  

 



______________________________________________________________________________ 
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
COMPILED BY CLTC STAFF ∙ 04/12/2019  

 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 
 

 
Albert Acfalle San Agustin 

 
 
A. FACTS: 

1. Location:  Lot 10120-11-41, Municipality of Dededo 
2. Lot Size / Lease Type: 4,047 +/- sq.m. 
3. Lease Instrument No. NA  Signing Date:  NA 
4. Pre-Occupier: No 
5. Surveyed: Pending survey completion  
 

Complaint/Issue:  Pre-moratorium Lease Review 
1995 Applicants with Transfers in accordance with  

PL 23-38, Section 5.8  
 
B. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 
 

  1. ORIGINAL APPLICANT – Maria San Agustin Frazier 
a. Application Date and Time:  October 18, 2000  
b. Numerical Sequence:  05405 
c. Preoccupier: Yes 
d. Application Type:  A 
e. Priority:  1 
 

 2. TRANSFER INFORMATION – Albert Acfalle San Agustin 
 a. Date of Request: September 26, 2014 

a. Date Transfer Approved:  April 23, 2018 
b. Approving Official:  Not indicated 

 
  3. MORATORIUM LEASE INFORMATION  

  a. Signature Date of Director: 4/26/2018 
b. Signature Date of Applicant:  4/26/2018 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



______________________________________________________________________________ 
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
COMPILED BY CLTC STAFF ∙ 04/12/2019  

 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 
 

 
Manuel Pineda San Nicolas 

 
 
A. FACTS: 

1. Location:  Lot 480-57-1, Municipality of Agat 
2. Lot Size / Lease Type: 2,022 +/- sq.m. 
3. Lease Instrument No. NA  Signing Date:  NA 
4. Pre-Occupier: No 
5. Surveyed: Pending survey completion  
 

Complaint/Issue:  Pre-moratorium Lease Review 
Applicant is in accordance with the law under PL23-38, Section 5.8 

 
B. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS 
 

  1. ORIGINAL APPLICANT – Felix P. San Nicolas 
a. Application Date and Time:  January 29, 1996 at 4:24PM 
b. Numerical Sequence:  0003202 
c. Preoccupier: Yes 
d. Application Type:  A 
e. Priority:  1 
 

2. TRANSFER INFORMATION – Manuel Pineda San Nicolas 
 a. Date of Request: 01/21/2009 

a. Date Transfer Approved:  06/12/2017 
b. Approving Official:  David Camacho 

 
  3. MORATORIUM LEASE INFORMATION  

  a. Signature Date of Director: April 24, 2018 
b. Signature Date of Applicant:  April 26, 2018  

 
 
 
 



ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru
(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)

B. Guam Housing Corp.  MOU



 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST  

AND THE 

GUAM HOUSING CORPORATION 

 

This Agreement is entered into on this ______ day of ___________, 2019, between the 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST, by and through the Chamorro Land Trust Commission 

(CLTC) whose mailing address is P.O. Box 2950 Hagatna, Guam 96932 and the GUAM 

HOUSING CORPORATION (GHC) whose mailing address is 590 S. Marine Corps Dr., 

5th Floor ITC Bldg., Tamuning, Guam 96913. 

 

WHEREAS the CLTC is a legislatively created body charged with administering for the 

benefit of the Chamorro people available lands on Guam that are Chamorro 

Homelands, and to this end may grant leases and licenses for the use of such property, 

and 

 

WHEREAS the GHC is a public corporation and autonomous agency of the 

Government of Guam created to promote the general welfare of the inhabitants of the 

Territory of Guam through the improvement of housing standards, housing supply and 

housing affordability in Guam, and  

 

WHEREAS the CLTC has within its inventory of Chamorro Homelands certain real 

property described as, 

 

a. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 1, Municipality of Dededo 

b. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 2, Municipality of Dededo 

c. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 3, Municipality of Dededo 

d. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 4, Municipality of Dededo 

e. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 5, Municipality of Dededo 

f. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 6, Municipality of Dededo 

g. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 7, Municipality of Dededo 

h. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 8, Municipality of Dededo 

i. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 9, Municipality of Dededo 

j. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 28, Municipality of Dededo 

(hereinafter “Lots” or “the Lots”), and 

 

WHEREAS the CLTC possesses and licenses other Chamorro Homelands within the 

village of Dededo, and 



 

WHEREAS the GHC desires to take possession of the Lots for a fixed term for the 

purpose of having built upon them affordable model homes, and 

 

WHEREAS it is the intent of the GHC to enter into certain sub-licenses with developers 

or contractors for the construction of model affordable houses upon the Lots, and 

 

WHEREAS the CLTC does not object to sub-license agreements entered into between 

GHC and developers or contractors for the construction of model affordable houses 

upon the Lots, and 

 

WHEREAS these model homes will serve to educate the public as to the practicality, 

safety, convenience and affordability of such homes so that they may elect to construct 

such a home, and 

 

WHEREAS the availability of such homes on Guam will serve to address the need for 

safe, affordable housing all to the benefit and general welfare of the inhabitants of the 

Territory of Guam, and 

 

WHEREAS the construction of such homes on Chamorro Homelands will advance the 

social, cultural and economic development and well-being of the Chamorro people by 

way of residential land distribution and economic assistance programs, and 

 

WHEREAS the CLTC is empowered to grant licenses for the use of Chamorro 

Homelands to licensees for public purposes pursuant to Chapter 75 of Title 21, Guam 

Code Annotated, and 

 

WHEREAS the GHC is empowered by Chapter 4 of Title 12, Guam Code Annotated, to 

encourage and engage in low and moderate income housing activities including the 

development of low cost housing and may take, hold and use real property for these 

purposes, 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the CLTC and the GHC agree as follows; 

 

1.  The CLTC shall grant licenses for no less than one year to the GHC to hold and use 

for public purposes the Lots, described as, 

 

a. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 1, Municipality of Dededo 

b. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 2, Municipality of Dededo 

d. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 4, Municipality of Dededo 



e. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 5, Municipality of Dededo 

f. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 6, Municipality of Dededo 

g. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 7, Municipality of Dededo 

h. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 8, Municipality of Dededo 

i. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 9, Municipality of Dededo 

j. Tract 1113, Block No. 12, Lot No. 28, Municipality of Dededo 

 

2.  That the CLTC and the GHC agree that the GHC may in turn grant sub-licenses of 

said Lots to developers or contractors for the construction of model affordable houses 

upon the Lots. 

 

3.  That upon the expiration of the license for each Lot, the GHC shall have no further 

right, nor obligation, with respect to a Lot, nor any improvement made upon it. 

 

AGREED this ______ day of ___________, 2019 at the City of Hagåtña, Guam 

 

FOR THE CHAMORRO     FOR THE GUAM HOUSING 

LAND TRUST     CORPORATION 

 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Jack E. Hattig III     Alice Taijeron 

Administrative Director, CLTC   President, GHC   

Date:____________    Date:____________ 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

G. Pika Fejeran     Francisco Florig 

Chairwoman, CLTC     Chairman, GHC   

Date:____________    Date:____________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru
(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)

C. Cannibus Cult ivat ion



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Doc. No. 35GL-19-0322.



Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: It was for the municipal counsel for Yigo when they had that.

Margarita Borja (CLTC): In the subdivision of 9210 there’s a phase II, and it’s in there even
for school and school is designated in there also parks and community center so we can
offer that it’s already a master plan.

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: that’s why I’m asking (inaudible) fix that rather than just
throw this up on the table.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: Okay, do we need a motion for that?

Administrative Director Michael Borja: No.

2. Cannabis Cultivation Application

Administrative Director Michael Borja: I just wanted to bring it to your attention that the
cannibis permitting and cultivation application process is underway and there’s three things
that deals with the Department of Land Management and Chamorro Land Trust collectively.
One is Land Management has to determine the zoning of the piece of property that’s being
desire for use and then to identify the owner of the property. The third thing it says if for any
lands that are being leased regardless of who the owner of the land is that they have to get
permission in writing from the owner so in this case we haven’t had any yet, from anybody
who has an agriculture lease from Chamorro Land Trust properties and they want
permission to cultivate. I’m asking that we set up a policy within the Chamorro Land Trust
and we can do it by resolution if you agree that anybody making that request has to get
board approval. Not anybody else approval and I’ve already instructed the folks who
maintain the master data base to create another column within the listings that identifies the
parcel property has been approved for marijuana cultivation so we’ll have a record of whose
lands are being used for that purpose or you can even set a policy that you prohibit the
marijuana cultivation or have certain restriction that it can only occur on properties greater
than x number of acres. Because there is a lot of other requirements that really limits the
ability to grow. You’ve got to build walls, you got to pay thousands of dollars just for the
application and permitting process and so it’s already throws down the whole number of
potential applicants but there’s a lot of people applying.

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: So on this cultivation is it limited for personal use or?

Administrative Director Michael Borja: No, currently it’s just for medicine. Cultivation is
one aspect, dispensaries is another. The two are not the same. You can’t grow and people
drive up to your farm and self-harvest or buy from the farm land there has to be another
license facility that does that. There has to be a certified grower of the product but they
can’t sell it. You can only sell in commercial or industrial zone and things like that.

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: Do you consider this an agriculture product?

CLTC Meeting Minutes
February 2, 2017

30 I 43

jhoana.casem
Highlight



Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: Yes.

Administrative Director Michael Borja: that’s the reason I want to have certain kind of
restrictions. I don’t want to people to have free for all and think that anybody can approve it
and there needs to be some governance on this.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: I’m not a 100% familiar but I know public health was
the one issuing license.

Administrative Director Michael Borja: They are the ones.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: Public Health has the structure and the (paused).

Administrative Director Michael Borja: But the process says if it’s the leased land the
owner of the land has to give consent. So my concern here is if someone comes to us with
a leased piece of property already and they intent to make this the cash crop of choice that
you can’t just plant because you have to get an approval from the Chamorro Land Trust
commissioner. It has to be by form of a motion to approve that application.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: I think that an added layer of the approval process if
they’ve been approved by Public Health I don’t know..

Administrative Director Michael Borja: No they are not approved by Public Health until
they get the approval from the land owner.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: So if they have everything else?

Administrative Director Michael Borja: It’s a condition to approve. It’s one of the
conditions that are require in their multiple steps to get approval from either cultivation or for
license to sell.

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: How do they apply the private property if the private
individual owns the property and cultivating it. Who overseas that restriction or monetary?

Administrative Director Michael Borja: They have to come to Land Management to get
certification of ownership and zoning. So if the applicant and the owner are somehow the
same person or thing then that’s it. But if the relationship of the applicant to this land is as a
lessee then he has to have authority from the owner.

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: So I were to cultivate on my own property, who would
oversee my production that I’m doing it according to the law?

Administrative Director Michael Borja: Public Health.

Kristan Finney (Legal Counsel AG): Under what authority would they be able to approve
this like where does it come under? That they can use it for this purpose?

CLTC Meeting Minutes
February 2,2017

311 43



Administrative Director Michael Borja: The use of the land. There’s nothing prohibiting
what they grow as long as it’s legal and now that it’s legal they can grow it. But we’re
saying you can’t, for the purpose for it being legally permitted process to use on the
Chamorro Land Trust you have to get Chamorro Land Trust approval to grow it for the
licensing and the application and if you can’t get that then you cant use it on our property.

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: Let’s say we approve a case and that case went sour, what
is our liability of approving that cultivation? Are we liable for that approval if anything should
have been against the law.

Administrative Director Michael Borja: I don’t know why you would have a liability issue
here. There’s a process for this products before they are even sold by a license dispensary.
There’s a laboratory that has to certify them.

Kristan Finney (Legal Counsel AG): I’m sorry, are you saying just the commission has to
specifically approve this request to grow? As oppose to just saying yes they have a lease,
you know what I’m saying?

Administrative Director Michael Borja: Well, they’re going to come to us if they try to
apply and they need the clearance because they are going to grow on leased land they
have to get approval from Chamorro Land Trust. Right now I’m not going to grant any
approval without the board’s determination and I’m just saying it’s done on a case by case
basis.

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: Let’s say that we gave them a lease for agriculture, what
makes it different not to do this activity and require a second approval from us?

Administrative Director Michael Borja: Because the law says if you want to grow it on
leased property you have to seek specific approval from the owner of the land to do that
function and that’s a necessary step in the overall approval process to obtain their permit.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: Here’s my perspective. If they already have an
agricultural lease and they want to avail of this new cash crop which I think will do well for
our economy and our island, I don’t think it is necessary for us to give commission approval
to individual applicants if they already have a lease and they are in good standing with us
and they come to us, I think the approval, I think the approval should come just like an
approval from our office comes for the hook up for power and water, utilities, I don’t think an
added layer from the Chamorro Land Trust is necessary. I think Public Health already have
that set up to make sure that the applicant is doing the right thing.

Administrative Director Michael Borja: We will be monitoring it though. We will be
keeping track on who has the authorization to grow, who we give the authorization to. So
that’s the flavor here then I don’t have a problem with that I just want to let you that I don’t
want to move on this action without your consent or agreement.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
February 2, 2017

32 I 43



Vice Chairman Joseph Crux: Now here’s also an agriculture lease for half acre verses an
agriculture lease of 2-3 acres, what rules differentiate the control of planting that half acre
verses a 2 acre lot.

Administrative Director Michael Borja: In the law I think it has a Type 1, Type 2 and Type
3. Commercial cultivation license for cultivation of Type 1 and it identified it as a
commercial cultivation license. Less than or equal to the 2,500 square feet of canopy of a
single premises. Type 2 is less than or equal to 2,501 square feet to 5,000 feet canopy then
it goes to Type 3 from 5,0001 to 10,000 square feet of canopy. That’s all three types and it
goes down to other commercial manufacturing facility license and we have dispensary
license then the medical cannabis testing laboratory licenses.

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: So what category you guys recommend to apply on this type
of approval?

Margarita Borja (CLTC): Under Chamorro Land Trust rules right, it says a commercial
agriculture is more than half acre. So anyone with a half acre (inaudible) I don’t know if
they be able to qualify but an acre or more are probably the only ones to be considered.
And then we have to, right now, we have several if they want to define it that way is
anything more than half is commercial. We have people paying a $1 a year for one acre
property. In the law they are already considered a commercial agriculture but they are
paying a dollar. And there’s some licenses that we have that indicate to be determine at a
later date. Some say (inaudible) so are we going to start charging for, you know.

Vice Chairman Joseph Crux: I think we should really set up before we can come up and
establish the approval of this type of cultivation and establish the category of your standard
and then.

Margarita Borja (CLTC): There’s three types of that indicates it’s commercial cultivation
license.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: How would that any different than say our agricultural
lessees that grow and sell their produce? How is that different?

Administrative Director Michael Borja: It’s no different except that they can’t legally grow
this without a permit. And it’s a monitored activity, there’s processes involve, that’s the only
thing different. It’s something that you can grow legally only if you get the proper permitting
to do so.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran So for our lessees, I remember there’s two types of
agriculture lessees. Subsistence and Commercial.

Administrative Director Michael Borja: Subsistence and Commercial and we differentiate
the leases at all. If you got a person who’s got more than half acre you can kind of guess
when he got it because it was a long time ago and anything nowadays we’re not giving any
more than half an acre. We’re giving half an acre and that’s it.

cLTc Meeting Minutes
February 2,2017

33 I 43



Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: Is a half acre enough for Type 1? I don’t see a
difference. I don’t think we need to define it at this point. I think if they have an agricultural
lease and they get the permit and they’re following the Public Health’s rules and regulations
then.

Administrative Director Michael Borja: Because it’s pretty strict they got to build a ten
foot wall around their plantation.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: So there’s safeguards already built in that we don’t
need to put in an extra layer of bureaucracy. Should we have a motion on this? Motion to
approve administratively any lessee’s with an agricultural lease in good standing.

Administrative Director Michael Borja: That would work. So moved.

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: So moved.

Commissioner Amanda Santos: Second.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: I hear second. Okay. Discussions?

Vice Chairman Joseph Cruz: No.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: All those in favor say aye.

All: Aye.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: Ayes have it. Motion passed. Thank you Director for
bring this up.

VII. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

1. Revenue Collection Report for December 2016

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: The non-appropriated fund that’s the special fund we
were looking at for those 2 positions. We’ll just go through this report.

Administrative Director Michael Borja: This is really all of Land Management stuff and so
the monies we collected they go into those specific funds so the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission Account 3624 and 3699. The Commission accounts would be the ones that
are probably from our commercial leases and then the CLT survey funds, those are
predominantly come currently because we don’t really have a funding stream for that.
These are from the land for the landless.

Acting Chairwoman Pika Fejeran: And this is just what was collected in the month of
December? And what is the to date collected.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
February 2,2017

34 I 43

jhoana.casem
Highlight









® DIPATTAMENTON MINANEHAN TANO’
(Department of Land Management)

G M GUBETNAMENTONGUAHAN
(Government of Guam)

EDDIE BAZA CALVO
Governor

RAY TENOR ID DAVID V. CAMACHO
Lieutenant Governor Deputy Director

February 24, 2017

MEMORANDUM

TO: Department of Land Management Staff
Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners
Guam Ancestral Lands Commission Board of Commissioners

FROM: Director

SUBJ: No Authorization for Cannabis Cultivation on Public Lands

Based on consultation with the Attorney General of Guam, cannabis cultivation on
government of Guam public lands is prohibited by both Guam and Federal laws,
notwithstanding Public Law 33-220, Compassionate Cannabis Use Act. A violation
of this prohibition may result in Federal prosecution.

Therefore, there shall be no approval or authorization for cannabis cultivation
applications on any public lands. These include government of Guam land and lands
administered by the Department of Land Management, the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission, and the Guam Ancestral Lands Commission.

This order stands until the enactment of legislative authorization granting such
authority under Federal and local law.

MICHAELJ.B. BORJA
DirectorStreet Address:

590 S. Marine Corps Drive
Suite 733 ITC Building
Tamuning, GU 96913

Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 2950

Hagátna, CU 96932

Website:
htID:)/dlm.Quam.qov

E-mail Address:
dlmdir@land.quam.gov

Telephone:
671-649-LAND (5263)

Facsimile:
671 -649-5383

MICHAEL
Director

I
L1

/



U.S. Department of Justice

Office of the Deputy Attorney General

The Deputy Attorney General 1iishington D.C 20530

August 29, 2013

MEMORANDUM FOR ALL UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

FROM: James M. Cole
‘ (

Deputy Attorney General

SUBJECT: Guidance Regarding Marijuana Enforcement

In October 2009 and June 2011, the Department issued guidance to federal prosecutors
concerning marijuana enforcement under the Controlled Substances Act (CSA). This
memorandum updates that guidance in light of state ballot initiatives that legalize under state law
the possession of small amounts of marijuana and provide for the regulation of marijuana
production, processing, and sale. The guidance set forth herein applies to all federal enforcement
activity, including civil enforcement and criminal investigations and prosecutions, concerning
marijuana in all states.

As the Department noted in its previous guidance, Congress has determined that
marijuana is a dangerous drug and that the illegal distribution and sale of marijuana is a serious
crime that provides a significant source of revenue to large-scale criminal enterprises, gangs, and
cartels. The Department of Justice is committed to enforcement of the CSA consistent with
those determinations. The Department is also committed to using its limited investigative and
prosecutorial resources to address the most significant threats in the most effective, consistent,
and rational way. In furtherance of those objectives, as several states enacted laws relating to the
use of marijuana for medical purposes, the Department in recent years has focused its efforts on
certain enforcemettt priorities that are particularly important to the federal government:

Preventing the distribution of marijuana to minors;

• Preventing revenue from the sale of marijuana from going to criminal enterprises, gangs,

and cartels;

• Preventing the diversion of marijuana from states where it is legal under state law in
some form to other states;

• Preventing state-authorized marijuana activity from being used as a cover or pretext for

the trafficking of other illegal drugs or other illegal activity;



Memorandum for All United States Attorneys Page 2
Subject: Guidance Regarding Marijuana Enforcement

• Preventing violence and the use of firearms in the cultivation and distribution of
marijuana;

• Preventing drugged driving and the exacerbation of other adverse public health
consequences associated with marijuana use;

• Preventing the growing of marijuana on public lands and the attendant public safety and
environmental dangers posed by marijuana production on public lands; and

• Preventing marijuana possession or use on federal property.

These priorities will continue to guide the Department’s enforcement of the CSA against
marijuana-related conduct. Thus, this memorandum serves as guidance to Department attorneys
and law enforcement to focus their enforcement resources and efforts, including prosecution, on
persons or organizations whose conduct interferes with any one or more of these priorities,
regardless of state law.’

Outside of these enforcement priorities, the federal government has traditionally relied on
states and local law enforcement agencies to address marijuana activity through enforcement of
their own narcotics laws. For example, the Department of Justice has not historically devoted
resources to prosecuting individuals whose conduct is limited to possession of small amounts of
marijuana for personal use on private property. Instead, the Department has left such lower-level
or localized activity to state and local authorities and has stepped in to enforce the CSA only
when the use, possession, cultivation, or distribution of marijuana has threatened to cause one of
the harms identified above.

The enactment of state laws that endeavor to authorize marijuana production,
distribution, and possession by establishing a regulatory scheme for these purposes affects this
traditional joint federal-state approach to narcotics enforcement. The Department’s guidance in
this memorandum rests on its expectation that states and local governments that have enacted
laws authorizing marijuana-related conduct will implement strong and effective regulatory and
enforcement systems that will address the threat those state laws could pose to public safety,
public health, and other law enforcement interests. A system adequate to that task must not only
contain robust controls and procedures on paper; it must also be effective in practice.
Jurisdictions that have implemented systems that provide for regulation of marijuana activity

These enforcement priorities are listed in general terms; each encompasses a variety of conduct
that may merit civil or criminal enforcement of the CSA. By way of example only, the
Department’s interest in preventing the distribution of marijuana to minors would call for
enforcement not just when an individual or entity sells or transfers marijuana to a minor, but also
when marijuana trafficking takes place near an area associated with minors; when marijuana or
marijuana-infused products are marketed in a manner to appeal to minors; or when marijuana is
being diverted, directly or indirectly, and purposefully or otherwise, to minors.



Memorandum for All United States Attorneys Page 3
Subject: Guidance Regarding Marijuana Enforcement

must provide the necessary resources and demonstrate the willingness to enforce their laws and
regulations in a manner that ensures they do not undermine federal enforcement priorities.

In jurisdictions that have enacted laws legalizing marijuana in some form and that have
also implemented strong and effective regulatory and enforcement systems to control the
cultivation, distribution, sale, and possession of marijuana, conduct in compliance with those
laws and regulations is less likely to threaten the federal priorities set forth above. Indeed, a
robust system may affirmatively address those priorities by, for example, implementing effective
measures to prevent diversion of marijuana outside of the regulated system and to other states,
prohibiting access to marijuana by minors, and replacing an illicit marijuana trade that funds
criminal enterprises with a tightly regulated market in which revenues are tracked and accounted
for. In those circumstances, consistent with the traditional allocation of federal-state efforts in
this area, enforcement of state law by state and local law enforcement and regulatory bodies
should remain the primary means of addressing marijuana-related activity. If state enforcement
efforts are not sufficiently robust to protect against the harms set forth above, the federal
government may seek to challenge the regulatory structure itself in addition to continuing to
bring individual enforcement actions, including criminal prosecutions, focused on those harms.

The Department’s previous memoranda specifically addressed the exercise of
prosecutorial discretion in states with laws authorizing marijuana cultivation and distribution for
medical use. In those contexts, the Department advised that it likely was not an efficient use of
federal resources to focus enforcement efforts on seriously ill individuals, or on their individual
caregivers. In doing so, the previous guidance drew a distinction between the seriously ill and
their caregivers, on the one hand, and large-scale, for-profit commercial enterprises, on the other,
and advised that the latter continued to be appropriate targets for federal enforcement and
prosecution. In drawing this distinction, the Department relied on the common-sense judgment
that the size of a marijuana operation was a reasonable proxy for assessing whether marijuana
trafficking implicates the federal enforcement priorities set forth above.

As explained above, however, both the existence of a strong and effective state regulatory
system, and an operation’s compliance with such a system, may allay the threat that an
operation’s size poses to federal enforcement interests. Accordingly, in exercising prosecutorial
discretion, prosecutors should not consider the size or commercial nature of a marijuana
operation alone as a proxy for assessing whether marijuana trafficking implicates the
Department’s enforcement priorities listed above. Rather, prosecutors should continue to review
marijuana cases on a case-by-case basis and weigh all available information and evidence,
including, but not limited to, whether the operation is demonstrably in compliance with a strong
and effective state regulatory system. A marijuana operation’s large scale or for-profit nature
may be a relevant consideration for assessing the extent to which it undermines a particular
federal enforcement priority. The primary question in all cases — and in all jurisdictions — should
be whether the conduct at issue implicates one or more of the enforcement priorities listed above.



Memorandum for All United States Attorneys Page 4
Subject: Guidance Regarding Marijuana Enforcement

As with the Department’s previous statements on this subject, this memorandum is
intended solely as a guide to the exercise of investigative and prosecutorial discretion. This
memorandum does not alter in any way the Department’s authority to enforce federal law,
including federal laws relating to marijuana, regardless of state law. Neither the guidance herein
nor any state or local law provides a legal defense to a violation of federal law, including any
civil or criminal violation of the C$A. Even in jurisdictions with strong and effective regulatory
systems, evidence that particular conduct threatens federal priorities will subject that person or
entity to federal enforcement action, based on the circumstances. This memorandum is not
intended to, does not, and may not be relied upon to create any rights, substantive or procedural,
enforceable at law by any party in any matter civil or criminal. It applies prospectively to the
exercise of prosecutorial discretion in future cases and does not provide defendants or subjects of
enforcement action with a basis for reconsideration of any pending civil action or criminal
prosecution. Finally, nothing herein precludes investigation or prosecution, even in the absence
of any one of the factors listed above, in particular circumstances where investigation and
prosecution otherwise serves an important federal interest.

cc: Mythili Raman
Acting Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division

Loretta E. Lynch
United States Attorney
Eastern District of New York
Chair, Attorney General’s Advisory Committee

Michele M. Leonhart
Administrator
Drug Enforcement Administration

H. Marshall Jarrett
Director
Executive Office for United States Attorneys

Ronald T. Hosko
Assistant Director
Criminal Investigative Division
Federal Bureau of Investigation



Beneficiary Approvals

Date approved Applicant Lot Description Designated Beneficiary
Relation to 

Applicant
Approving Official

1 2/12/2019 Evelyn Bautista Taitague none Johnny William Pangelinan son
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

2 2/15/2019 Virginia Quidachay Villagomez none
Justin Jerome Quidachay 

Villagomez
son

Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

3 2/21/2019 Raymund Sablan Damian
Lot 6, Block 19, Tract 10316, 

Dededo
Jianna Rose Damian Sanchez Granddaughter

Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

4 3/11/2019
Madeleine Sophie Mendiola 

Losongco
none Manuel Aguon Quenga, Jr. son

Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

5 3/12/2019 Francisco Blas Cruz Lot 10120, Dededo Eduardo Elkins Cruz Whitman nephew
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

6 3/15/2019 Jose Castro Munoz
Lot 2-1, Block 5, Tract 1021, 

Dededo
Lourdes Munoz Meno Sister

Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

7 3/15/2019 Mary C. Camacho-Untalan Lot 8-1, Tract 1112, Dededo Carlos R. Untalan Spouse
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

8 4/4/2019 Pablo Cruz Millon none Tiffany Millon Palma daughter
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

9 4/5/2019 Michael Frank Duenas
Lot 27, Block 5, Tract 15213, 

Mangilao
Maelene L. Rivera daughter

Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

10 4/9/2019 Silvester Quenga Guerrero
Lot 2, Block 15, Tract 9210 

(Phase-1), Yigo
Chad C. Alianza son

Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

11 4/9/2019 Jesus S. Ignacio Lot 10171, Dededo George C. Ignacio son
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

Board Meeting - April 18, 2019



Utility Authorizations Issued

Date Type Applicant Lot Description

Recorded 

Lease 

Doc#

Type of Authorization Approving Official

1 3/6/2019 Residential Shirley Pangelinan Gagan Lot 5402-R5NEW-14-8, Mangilao 884658 power/water
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

2 3/11/2019 Agriculture Jesusa Salas Muna Lot 3, Block 2, Tract 18113, Mangilao 909660 power/water
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

3 3/12/2019 Residential Melissa Ann Salas Siguenza Lot 10122-81, Dededo 900909 power/water/telephone
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

4 3/15/2019 Residential Isabel Cruz Borja Lot 10123-3-14, Dededo 909659 power/water
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

5 3/20/2019 Residential Joaquin Camacho Mesa Lot 10119-11-1-2, Dededo 876665 power/water
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

6 3/28/2019 Agriculture Richard Q. Camacho Lot 4-1, Block 5, Tract 1021, Dededo 873300 water
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

7 4/1/2019 Agriculture Martina S. Cruz Lot 11-5, Block 1, Tract 10316, Dededo power/water
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

8 4/2/2019 Agriculture Vicente Raymond Garrido Lot 3-1, Tract 1112, Dededo 874738 water
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

9 4/8/2019 Agriculture Oscar G. Cruz Lot 1-7, Block 9, Tract 10121, Yigo power
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

10 4/8/2019 Residential Faustine Marie Palacios Lot 3-1, Block 2, Tract 319-Unit 3, Agat power/water
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

11 4/9/2019 Residential Paul Anthony Rosario Lot 8-1, Block 21, Tract 10125, Dededo power/water
Jack E. Hattig III, 

Administrative Director

Board Meeting - April 18, 2019



Constituent 
Matters
A. Requests for Lease

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru

(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)

NEDEDOG, CHRISTIANNA JEAN SARMIENTO

TOVES, ANTONIO 



  
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 
COMPILED BY MVB ∙ 4/12/2019 
CHRISTIANNA JEAN SARMIENTO NEDEDOG 
 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 

 

CHRISTIANNA JEAN SARMIENTO NEDEDOG 

 

1. PURPOSE: 

a. Request for Issuance of a Residential Lease as a Pre-Occupier 

 

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS: 

a. Original Applicant: Christianna Jean Sarmiento Nededog 
b. Application Date and Time: October 10, 2005, at 11:55am 
c. Application Number: 006350 
d. Application Type: Residential 
e. Priority: 1 

 
3. STAFF ANALYSIS: 

 
Mrs. Nededog is a pre-occupier of Government land more particularly described as Lot 14, Block 
8, Tract 178, Machananao since her birth in 1979.  Her grandparents namely, Richard P. and 
Veronica C. Ramez, were awarded this lot in 1975 under a Land Use Permit Agreement No. 
112, with Department of Land Management.  She provided a Mayors Certification which 
indicated that she was a caretaker for her grandparents until their death. 
 
On March 8, 2019, a site inspection of the property was conducted and onsite was a dilapidated 
mobile home that was purchased by her grandparents in 1977, as evidenced in the Sales 
Contract recorded under Instrument No. 285056. 
 
Paid Property Taxes for the building were also provided for tax years beginning in 1997, 1999, 
2000, 2005, 2006 and 2007. 
 
Past billings for power were provided, which has been disconnected since June 2017. 

 
 

4. RECOMENDATIONS:  
Motion to approve the issuance of a Residential Lease as a preoccupier to Lot 14, Block 8, 

Tract 178, Machananao Yigo 

 



jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight



















CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 

ANTONIO JAMES TOVES 

1. FACTS

a. Location: Tract 10316 Block 1 Lot 12-RS, Dededo

b. Lot Size / Lease Type: 7,930.00+-square meters; Residential

c. Lease Instrument No. and Signing Date: NONE

d. Complaint/Issue: Applicant requests issuance of a lease based on preoccupant status and 
issuance of authorization for utilities (water and power)

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS

a. Mayor's Certification of Residence occupying land since June 30, 1994
b. Application Date and Time: May 24, 2001 at 1 :35pm
c. Application Sequence Number: 05556
d. Occupying 1164 Ysengsong Road, Dededo (ref: CL TC application as a preoccupier)
e. Utilities application dated May 23, 2001
f. CL TC Inspection Report dated February 24, 2003

1. Findings: Construction of improvement without proper permitting
g. Approval of application of power, telephone and water services dated May 24, 2001 

by Jesse L.G. Perez, Deputy Administrative Director. As to "A portion of Lot 10120-R18" 
in the name of Antonio James Toves

h. Order to Cease and Desist dated March 12, 2003 as to CL TC Inspection Report dated 
February 24, 2003.

i. Pending scheme completion for T10316, B1, L12-R5 Dededo for 1/2 acre at survey division

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Motion to approve issuance of a lease for Antonio James Toves for T10316, B1, L12-R5 Dededo 
subject to a survey for 1/2 acre on property and issuance of a utility authorization for power and 
water. 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

COMPILED BY J.GUMATAOTAO 04/10/2019 

ANTONIO JAMES TOVES 
1 

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight



of GmGoverrnet of Guam
1eprtmet of Land Managemet Office i

pile for Record i hstnmient No

____

8O8Oi
o the Year 5 Motiii Dy _2.- The

ECFI9CK Fecept NGc.Recrdg ee

Dey Rcder

SEE SHEET 1 OF 4

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SPECIAL NOTES:
1. THIS PLAT WAS PREPAREb FO1 THE USE OF THE bEPAfTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT,
CHAMORRO LAND ThUST COMMISSION AND THE bEPARTMENT OF EVENUE AND TAXATION.

2. THIS SUBDIVISION WAS PEPAIEb F1OM ECORb bATA SOLELY, NO SURVEY FIELD WOJK
WAS UNDERTAKEN TO PEPAE THIS PLAT.

3. THIS PLAT IS TO E USEb FOR PLANNING AND FEAL PROPEITY ASSESSMENT PEI SECTION
75108 FO LOCATION PUJPOSES ONLY, BUT IS NOT SURVEY ACCURATE
SECTION 75108 CONbITION IN LEASES:
f THE LESSEE SHALL PAY ALL TAXES ASSESSED UPON THE TRACT ANb IMPROVEMENTS
THEREON.

4. PROPERTY DATA, INCLUIDING LOT NUMBERS, AND LESSEES, ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGES OR
REVISION.

5. THIS PLAT WAS PREPAREb PURSUANT TO TITLE 21, GUAM CODE ANNOTATED, CHAPTER 75
CHAMORRO LANb TRUST COMMISSION SECTION 75103d ANb e.
d THE COMMISSION IS AUTHORIZEb TO CARRY ON ANY ACTIVITIES IT DEEMS NECESSARY
TO ASSIST LESSEES IN OBTAINING MAXIMUM UTILIZATION OF LEASEb LANDS,
INCLUDING ANY STEPS NECESSARY TO DEVELOP THESE LANDS FOR THEIR HIGHEST AND
BEST USE COMMENSURATE WITH THE PURPOSE FOR WHICH THE LAND IS BEING LEASED AS
PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 75107AND ASSISTING LESSEES IN ALL PHASES OF FARMING
AND RANCHING OPERATIONS AND THE MARKETING OF THEIR AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE AND
LIVESTOCK. - ,

e THE COMMISSION MAY DESIGNATE AND PLAN SUBDIVISIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 62 OF THIS TITLE 21 GCA, ON AVAILABLE LANDS IN,
ADJACENT TO OR NEAR ANY VILLAGE.

REFERENCE:
1. DWG. NO. E4-70T672, LAND REGISTRATION SURVEY MAP OF LOT 10122,
DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT, DOC. NO. 355790.

PREPARE BY

4iw___ 7i7i1
MARGARItA V. RJA DATE
LAND MANAGEMENTADMIN/STRATOR

REVIEWY GUAM CHIEF PLANNER

A1
MARvrQLL1AR DATE
GUAM FEFLNER

REVIEWEb BY CHIEF OFCAbASTRE/GUAM CHIEF SURVOR

/:Z

AULL.SANTOS DATE
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 68

KUMISION JNANGOKKON TANO CHAMORU
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMJSSION

AGRICULTURAL SUBDIVISION MASTER
OF

LOT 10122 and TRACT 10316
LAND SQUARE 37 MUNICIPALITY OF DEDEDO SE

SURVEY bATA BASIC LOT bATA

PLAN

CTION 3

JOB NO. 2213-11-14 bATE
COMPUTEb BY SURVEY OCT-DEC. ‘ 14
DRAWN BY SURVEY JAN-MAR.’lS
RESEARCHED BY SURVEY OCT-DEC. ‘ 14
FIELD BY : -N/A- -N/A-
REVIEWED BY PLS APRIL 2015
SCALE IS INMEThICSYSTEM AS SHOWN
SHEET 2 oF
DWG. NO. 2213-11-14
GRID: B6

LOT 10122
CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NO. 61426
REGISTERED ON: 03-29-78
ESTATE NO. 55361
IN THE NAME OF:

GOVERNMENT OF GUAM

.

GOVERNMENT OF GUAM
GUBETNAMENTON GUAHAN

DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT
DIPATTAMENTON MINANEHAN TANO’

LAND SURVEY DtVISION
DIBStON AGRAMENSIAN TANO’

I_ E
1993 GRID

If,1’

I inch 100 meters

S
GRAPHIC SCALE

200 150 50 0

MATCH LINE
SEESHEET3OF4

ESME-NTD0CNO795J-3O9-----

LOT 6, BLOCK B
AREA = 335– SM.

MATCH LINE
SEE SHEET 3 OF 4

. t

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Sticky Note





Constituent 
Matters
A. Requests for Clearing and Grading 

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru

(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)

JANZ, TERESITA CASTRO

GAGAN, SHIRLEY PANGELINAN

FEJERAN, KENNETH SANTOS 



CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

TERESITA CASTRO JANZ 

1. FACTS:

a. Location: Lot 10171-79, Dededo

b. Lot Size/ Lease Type: 2,438+/- square meters, Residential

c. Lease Instrument Number: 912376/ Addendum No. 915641

d. Field Description: Flat

e. Complaint: Requesting reissue of Building and Clearing Permit

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 6, 1995 at 2:37 p.m.
b. Application Number: 1321
c. June 15, 2017: Marriage Certificate submitted to change birth name Teresita June Castro 

to legal married name Teresita Castro Janz
d. July 10, 2017: Residential Interview 
e. July 13, 2017: Lot 10171-79 Dededo, shown and accepted. Requested Survey 

Authorization.
f. August 1, 2017: Residential Lease signed and recorded, Instrument No. 912376
g. August 8, 2017: Survey Authorization issued, approved by CL TC Administrative Director,

Michael J.B. Borja
h. November 17, 2017: Surveyed Map recorded under OLM Map Document No. 914772, PIO

3000009708000.
i. December 11, 2017: Addendum to reflect recorded survey map Document No. 915641,

Utilities Authorization-GPA and GWA, Building and Clearing Permit issued.

3. RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve reissue of Building and Clearing Permit Authorization for         
Teresita Castro Janz on Lot 10171-79 Dededo

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

PREPARED BY JD, 03/26/2019 

TERESITA CASTRO JANZ 

'f-<-

1 



jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight





CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

SHIRLEY PANGELINAN GAGAN 

1. FACTS:
a. Location: Lot 5402-R5NEW-14-8 Mangilao

b. Lot Size/ Lease Type: 2,230+/- square meters/Residential

c. Lease Instrument Number: 884658

d. Field Description: Occupying

e. Complaint: Requesting Building, Clearing and Grading Permit Authorization

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 4, 1995 at 9:19 am
b. Application Number: 0000863
c. January 19, 2004-Residential Interview Report
d. January 19, 2004-lnspection Report
e. April 14, 2004-Survey Authorization issued, approved by CL TC Acting Administrative

Director, Felixberto R. Dungca JR.
f. February 5, 2015-Second Survey Authorization issued, approved by CL TC Administrative

Director Michael J.B. Borja
g. September 22, 2015-Residential Lease issued for Lot 5402-R5NEW-14-8, Mangilao

containing an area of 2,230+/- square meters, as shown on the Survey Map, prepared by
Frank LG. Castro, P.LS. No. 19, LM. No. 125FY2015, Recorded Under OLM Map
Document No. 881800. PIO 30000056980000.

h. March 6, 2019-Utilities Authorization for GPA and GWA issued, approved by CL TC
Administrative Director Jack Hattig Ill.

3. RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve Building, Clearing and Grading Permit Authorization for
Shirley Pangelinan Gagan, Lot 5402-R5NEW-14-8, Mangilao containing an area of 2,230+/- square
meters, as shown on the Survey Map, prepared by Frank LG. Castro, P.LS. No. 19, LM. No.
125FY2015, Recorded Under OLM Map Document No. 881800. PIO 30000056980000.

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

PREPARED BY JD, 04/02/2019 

SHIRLEY PANGELINAN GAGAN 
1 

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight



jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight



CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

KENNETH SANTOS FEJERAN 

1. FACTS:

a. Location: Lot 9-6, Block 5, Tract 1 00C, Dededo

b. Lot Size/ Lease Type: 2, 177+/- square meters/Agriculture

c. Lease Instrument Number: 907698

d. Field Description: Occupying

e. Complaint: Requesting Clearing and Grading Permit Authorization

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 2, 1995 at 11 :56 am
b. Application Number: 0000310
c. July 1, 1997-Residential Interview
d. November 14, 2000- Decline of Municipality Award for Residential lot in Dededo, Tract 

1022, Block 03, Lot 33

e. June 18, 2001-Utilities Authorization issued for GTA, GPA, GWA, and approval for 
clearing and building permits.

f. July 28, 2005-Requested to change application type from Residential to Agricultural, 
approved by CL TC Administrative Director Thomas A. Elliott

g. October 12, 2016-2nd Decline of Municipality Award for Residential Lease on Lot 27, Tract 
14119 Mangilao.

h. May 24, 2017-Agricultural Lease issued. Lot 9-6, Block 5, Tract 1 00C, Dededo containing 
an area of 2, 177+/- square meters, as shown on the Survey Map, prepared by Frank L.G. 
Castro, P.L.S. No. 19, L.M. No. 117 FY2017, Recorded Under DLM Map Document No. 
905291. PID 30000090550000.

3. RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve Clearing and Grading Permit Authorization for Kenneth 
Santos Fejeran, Lot 9-6, Block 5, Tract 1 00C, Dededo 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

PREPARED BY JD, 04/09/2019 

KENNETH SANTOS FEJERAN 
1 



jhoana.casem
Highlight

jhoana.casem
Highlight





Constituent 
Matters
A. Other Requests 

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru

(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)

MUNA, FELIZ AND AGUON, TOMASA 



  

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

COMPILED BY MVB∙ 04/12/2019 

FELIX S. MUNA 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Staff Report 

 

FELIX S. MUNA 

1. FACTS: 

a. Location:  Lot 15, Block 8, Tract 18113, Mangilao 

b. Lot Size and Application/Lease Type: 2,365+ square meters 

c. Lease Ins. No and Signing Date: None  

d. Complaint/Issue: Recognition as Original Pre-occupier 

 

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS: 

a. Application Date and Time: January 30, 2018 at 8:41am  
b. Application Number: 008247 

 
       3. STAFF ANALYSIS 

Mr. Muna is requesting to be recognized as the original pre-occupier of Lot 15, Block 8, Tract 18113, 

Mangilao.  Mr. Muna was a Land Use Permittee for the subject lot under the Arrendu Program with 

Department of Land Management since February 12, 1988 up until 1993, where they farmed, raised 

chickens and pigs. 

 

 In 1991, they started construction of the semi-concrete home and was completed in 1992. 

 

 In 1992, they had utilities (power and water) installed. 

 

In 1994, Mr. Muna was forced to relocate off-island for health issues and authorized his brother-in-law, 

Ignacio Aguon to occupy the property temporarily until they return.  Mr. Muna returned to the island in 

1996, to find his brother-in-law and his children and extended family also occupying the lot and home.  

Due to his brother-in-law being terminally ill, she did not want to evict them.  Several years later, his 

brother-in-law passed and his children continued to occupy, to this date. 

 

In 2016, Mr. Muna wanted to look at returning to the property, so they visited our office and spoke to 

CLTC Staff and was advised that Gregory Aguon has applied with CLTC as a pre-occupier to the same 

lot that Mr. Muna is claiming.  Mr. Aguon’s file revealed that he had provided certification from the 

Mayor that he has been occupying the lot since 1995.  SEE STAFF REPORT (GREGORY AGUON). 

 

Mr. Aguon provided notarized statements from Julia and Jocelyn Pangelinan stating that Felix Muna 

and Tomasa Aguon lived on the land after the completion of their house in 1991 and up to early 1994. 

 

     4. RECOMMENDATION 

Motion to approve Felix Muna as the recognized pre-occupier for Lot 15, Block 8, Tract 18113, 

Mangilao pursuant to PL 23-38, Section 6.4.    

  



  

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

COMPILED BY JB/MVB ∙ 04/10/2018 

GREGORY Q. AGUON  

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

 

GREGORY Q. AGUON 

 

1. FACTS: 

a. Location:  Tract 18113, Block 8, Lot 15 Mangilao 

b. Lot Size / Lease Type: 2,365 +/- square meters, Agriculture applicant  

c. Lease Instrument Number:  N/A 

d. Field Description:  Located behind the old Kenny’s Café in Mangilao 

e. Complaint: Request by Felix S. Muna to be recognized as pre-occupier of lot occupied by 

applicant. 

 

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS: 

 

a. Application Date and Time: January 27, 2006 at 9:27am (did not indicate on 
application that he was a preoccupier to subject lot) 

b. Application Number: 6430 
c. Applicant submitted Mayor’s Verification from Mangilao Mayor indicating that “A” has been 

occupying since 1997. Dated 07/14/2008. 
d. Applicant was interviewed by CLTC Staff. Dated 07/14/2008 
e. Inspection report indicating no farm activity and occupying lot with other siblings; 4 houses 

are on the property; inspection report done by Sean Aldan and Joffre Aguon. 
Dated 06/15/2013 

f. Applicant submitted a Mayor’s Verification from Mangilao Mayor indicating that “A” was 
occupying #312-A Kinny’s Dr.  Dated 07/25/2015 

g. Applicant submitted Mayor’s Verification from Mangilao Mayor indicating that “A” has been 
occupying since 1995. Dated 07/29/2015 

h. Applicant completed a Change Form updating his contact numbers and provided the 
following comments.  Dated 10/19/15 
“Applicated dated 10/9/95 I am not occupying land.  I didn’t really understand what it 
meant I thought it was asking if I had papers for that land but I am a pre-occupier on 
#312A-Kenney’s drive since 1995 (see certification)” 

i. Inspection conducted to GPS the existing structures on the lot for preparation of the 
proposed scheme. Dated 11/30/2015 

j. Inspection conducted due to utility request by applicant.  Dated 08/30/2016 
 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Based on PL23-38, Section 6.4, “A” is a 1995 applicant occupying as a pre-occupier based on his 

submitted Mayor’s Verifications  

 

 

 

 

 























Administrative 
Matters
A. Media Policy
B. Switched or Transferred Leases
C. Proposal from UOG regarding boundary 

with hatchery 

Kumision Inangokkon Tåno’ Chamoru

(Chamoru Land Trust Commission)



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
102 - Null and Void Leases

FULL NAME (TRANSFEREE) APP'N DATE APP'N TIME LOT DESCRIPTION
SIGNING 

DATE

TYPE OF 

TRANSFER 
REMARKS ON N/A'S

NAME & APPLICATION DATE 

OF TRANSFEROR

NAME & APPLICATION 

DATE OF TRANSFEREE

RELATIONSHIP 

BETWEEN 

TRANSFEROR & 

TRANSFEREE

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A SWITCH 

OF DATE AND 

TIME BETWEEN 

APPLICANTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO A 

BENEFICIARY 

WHO THEN IN 

TURN 

TRANSFERRED 

THOSE RIGHTS 

TO ANOTHER

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO AN 

INELIGIBLE 

BENEFICIARY

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

A BENEFICIARY 

WAS NOT 

DESIGNATED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

THE ORIGINAL 

APPLICANT DID 

NOT QUALIFY 

UNDER THE 

CHAMORU LAND 

TRUST ACT

NO TRANSFER 

APPLIED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

LEASE PRIOR TO 

THE 7 YEARS 

WITHOUT 

APPROVAL

TRANSFER IN 

ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE LAW

Gisela R. C. Acfalle 12/2/1995 4:18 PM Lot 6, Block 4, Tract 10125, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,927.57+/- 

square meters subject to survey as 

shown on Subdivision Master Plan No. 

2015-M05-4

6/23/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

1) Rosita Camacho Vitug;

12/2/1995, 2) Scotdy Peter

Aguon; 12/2/1995

Gisela R. C. Acfalle; 

8/24/2016

none stated x

Fred Quintanilla Aguon 12/2/1995 9:45 AM Lot 04, Block 06, Tract 319 - Unit 3, 

Agat

1/23/1997 N/A Other Josie Q. Benavente Fred Quintanilla Aguon; 

12/2/1995
did not state x

Jenalyn Rachelle Aguon 12/4/1995 12:12 PM Lot 8, Block 2, Tract 10316, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,086+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Subdivision Master Plan No. 2015-M05-

15

2/8/2018 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Jesse Jerome Aguon; 

12/4/1995

Jenalyn Rachelle Aguon; 

9/21/2017

daughter x

Josephine Pangelinan Aguon 12/6/1995 9:55 AM Lot 26, Block 10, Tract 10121, Yigo 

containing an area of 3,428+/- square 

meters

4/10/2012 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Ursula Ayuyy Larrabee; 

12/6/1995

Josephine Pangelinan 

Aguon;11/8/2013 cousin x

Randy Christopher Alcantara 12/2/1995 3:29 PM Lot 8-33-6, Inarajan containing an area 

of 1,872+/- square meters

1/6/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Michael Anthony Alcantara; 

12/2/1995

Randy Christopher 

Alcantara; 1/4/2016
brother x

Bernadette R. P. Aldan 4/18/1997 11:50 AM Lot 7, Block 18, Tract 10316, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters

2/2/2016 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Joanne C. Aldan; 4/18/1997 Bernadette R. P. Aldan; 

9/14/11 sister in law x

Lydia Manibusan Aldan 12/5/1995 11:00 AM Lot 23, Block 12, Tract 11405, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,951+/- square 

meters

2/2/2016 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Joann Hernandez Manibusan; 

12/5/1995

Lydia Manibusan Aldan; 

2/17/2003 did not state x

Joaquin Taitano Alicto 12/18/1995 9:56 AM Lot 1-1, Block 8, Tract 10121, Yigo 

containing an area of 2,544+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Scheme No. M13-S020 attached as 

Exhibit A

3/1/2018 N/A Switch of Date & Time Davy Cepeda Camacho; 

12/18/1995

Joaquin Taitano Alicto; 

2/24/1997

did not state x

Alexander C. Avalos 12/2/1995 12:30 PM Lot 11, Block 7, Tract 37306, Inarajan 

containing an area of 1,040+/- square 

meters

2/6/2014 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Cheryl Deanne Avalos 

12/2/1995

Alexander C. Avalos; 

12/17/2012 son x

Melanie A. Superales Barnes 12/29/1995 12:20 PM Lot 27-1, Block 4, Tract 10121, Yigo 

containing an area of 2,023.50+/- 

square meters

3/1/2018 NA Relinquishment via 

Application

Luz Superales Fejeran; 

12/29/1995

Melanie A. Superales 

Barnes; 9/1/2015 niece x

Joseph Ray Benavente 12/3/1997 3:57 PM Lot 5, Block 6, Tract 15213, Mangilao 

containing an area of 1,858+/- square 

meters

8/5/2002 N/A Other 2) Anita Mendiola Benavente;

06/03/2011, 1) Thomas Peter

Reyes Crisostomo; 12/3/1997

Joseph Ray Benavente (no 

application - added as 

spouse)
spouse

x - needed to 

pursue VA loan, so 

original app (wife) 

transferred her 

rights to pursue loan

JayRyan Thomas Terlaje Blas 12/4/1995 4:56 PM Lot 12, Block 6, Tract 1143, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters

7/18/2014 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Cynthia Lynn Terlaje; 

10/17/1995

Jayryan Thomas Terlaje 

Blas; 6/18/2014 son x

Steven D. Blas 12/5/1995 4:55 PM Lot 12, Block 6, Tract 10125, Dededo 

containing an area of 4,047+/- square 

meters as shown on Subdivision Master 

Plan No. 2015-M05-4

1/13/2004 N/A Other Catherine A.C. Guerrero; 

12/01/1995

Steven D. Blas; no 

application (added as a son)

son

x - 07/2003 

approved by JMB to 

transfer application 

Mariah M. V. Borja 12/6/1995 1:05 PM Lot 5382N-3-2, Barrigada containing an 

area of 1,847+/- square meters subject 

to survey as shown on Scheme No. M04-

008 attached as Exhibit A

6/7/2017 N/A Switch of Date & Time Marina Vergara Wong; 

12/6/1995

Mariah M. V. Borja;4-14-

2017

niece x

Preston Dumlao Borja 12/9/1995 9:54 AM Lot 8-33-19, Inarajan containing an area 

of 1,858+/- square meters subject to 

survey as shown on Scheme No. M06-

007 attached as Exhibit A

4/26/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Pedro Flores Borja, Jr; 

12/09/1995

Preston Dumlao Borja; 

03/04/2016

son x

Vicente S. Borja Jr. 12/2/1995 11:53 AM Lot 35, Block 2, Tract 1722, Mangilao 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Subdivision Master Plan No. 2015-M07-

5

2/23/2018 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Victoria Lynn Borja; 12/2/1995 Vicente S. Borja Jr.; 

5/23/2017

brother x

Joseph Ray Bragg, Jr. 12/5/1995 3:26 PM Lot 5382N-27, Barrigada containing an 

area of 2,144+/- square meters subject 

to survey as shown on Scheme No. M04-

008 attached as Exhibit A

9/11/2017 NA Relinquishment via 

Application

Ana Velasquez Blas; 12-5-1995 Joseph Ray Bragg, Jr.; 5-4-

2017

nephew x

Jacquelin P. Cabrera 12/6/1995 1:25 PM Lot 11, Block 5, Tract 9210 (Phase - 1), 

Yigo containing an area of 1,068+/- 

square meters

10/2/2015 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Maria Techaira Pangelinan; 

12/06/1995

Jacquelin P. Cabrera; 

06/27/2012 daughter x

Maria Dolores Camacho-

Gacgacao

12/9/1995 2:23 PM Lot 5382N-21, Barrigada containing an 

area of 2,092+/- square meters subject 

to survey as shown on Scheme No. M04-

008 attached as Exhibit A

4/24/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Juan A. Camacho, Jr.; 12-9-

1995

Maria Dolores Camacho-

Gacgacao;

daughter x

Gloria Mae Castro 12/2/1995 11:10 AM Lot 1-4, Block 9, Tract 10121, Yigo 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters

8/23/2017 N/A Switch of Date & Time Doris R.C. Mafnas; 12/2/1995 Gloria Mae Castro; 7/9/2003

Niece x

Robert Namauleg Celestial 

and Yvonne Borja Flores

12/2/1995 10:15 AM Lot 15-1, Block 3, Tract 1021, Dededo 

containing an area of 8,414+/- square 

meters

11/23/2011 N/A Other Yvonne M.G. Blas; 12/2/1995 Robert Namauleg Celestial 

And Yvonne Borja Flores; 

5/16/2001

spouse x

CHamoru Land Trust Commission 1 / 6 Updated April 12, 2019



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
102 - Null and Void Leases

FULL NAME (TRANSFEREE) APP'N DATE APP'N TIME LOT DESCRIPTION
SIGNING 

DATE

TYPE OF 

TRANSFER 
REMARKS ON N/A'S

NAME & APPLICATION DATE 

OF TRANSFEROR

NAME & APPLICATION 

DATE OF TRANSFEREE

RELATIONSHIP 

BETWEEN 

TRANSFEROR & 

TRANSFEREE

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A SWITCH 

OF DATE AND 

TIME BETWEEN 

APPLICANTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO A 

BENEFICIARY 

WHO THEN IN 

TURN 

TRANSFERRED 

THOSE RIGHTS 

TO ANOTHER

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO AN 

INELIGIBLE 

BENEFICIARY

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

A BENEFICIARY 

WAS NOT 

DESIGNATED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

THE ORIGINAL 

APPLICANT DID 

NOT QUALIFY 

UNDER THE 

CHAMORU LAND 

TRUST ACT

NO TRANSFER 

APPLIED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

LEASE PRIOR TO 

THE 7 YEARS 

WITHOUT 

APPROVAL

TRANSFER IN 

ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE LAW

Lori Renee Cepeda 12/2/1995 1:38 PM Lot 10120-R22, Parcel 28, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,995+/- square 

meters

4/22/2015 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Janiece Siguenza Santos; 

12/02/1995

Lori Renee Cepeda 

12/12/2012 daughter x

Cheryl Lynn Torres 

Chargualaf

12/9/1995 1:28 PM Lot 4, Block 8, Tract 37306, Inarajan 

containing an area of 1,038+/- square 

meters

4/24/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Frank Blas Chargualaf Jr; 

12/09/1995

Cheryl Lynn Torres 

Chargualaf 04/06/2016 daughter x

Albert Jr. Pangelinan Cortez 1/27/1999 11:00 AM Lot 9, Block 2, Tract 10125, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,116+/- square 

meters

8/15/2016 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Nickdao Magdalene Deleon 

Guerrero; 1/27/1999

Albert Jr. Pangelinan Cortez; 

10/28/2008 nephew x

Francisco J. Crisostomo 12/7/1995 1:04 PM Lot 10120-46, Dededo containing an 

area of 1,994+/- square meters

3/20/2015 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Ories Author Douglas; 

12/7/1995 

Francisco J. Crisostomo; 

12/5/2014
brother x

Brandon Glenn P. Cruz 12/2/1995 5:00 PM Lot 5382-13-4, Barrigada containing an 

area of 1,910+/- square meters subject 

to survey as shown on Scheme No. M04-

002 attached as Exhibit A

9/20/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Lisa Clair Punzalan; 12-2-1995 Brandon Glenn P. Cruz; 4-22-

2017

son x

Clarissa L. Cruz 3/9/2005 1:18 PM Lot 4, Block 22, Tract 10125, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Subdivision Master Plan No. 2015-M05-

4

8/16/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Cassandra L. Cruz; 3/9/2005 Clarissa L. Cruz; 6/24/2014

sister x

Danny Petros Cruz 12/20/1995 2:43 PM Lot 10122-22-24, Dededo containing an 

area of 2,023+/- square meters

5/18/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Ann Marie Petros Cruz; 

12/20/1995

Danny Petros Cruz; 

1/25/2017 son x

Devend Michael Punzalan 

Cruz

12/2/1995 5:04 PM Lot 5382-13-3, Barrigada containing an 

area of 1,911+/- square meters subject 

to survey as shown on scheme No. M04-

002 attached as Exhibit A

9/20/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Glenn Edward Cruz; 12/2/1995 Devend Michael Punzalan 

Cruz; 4/20/2017

son x

Edward John Perez Cruz 3/14/2000 1:45 PM A portion of Lot 5401-1, Mangilao 

containing an area of not more than one-

half (.50) acre subject to survey

8/16/2011 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Edward Ignacio Cruz; 3/14/2000 Edward John Perez Cruz; 

7/21/2011 son x

Gabrielle B. Cruz 12/5/1995 10:38 AM Lot 5382N-28, Barrigada containing an 

area of 2,133+/- square meters subject 

to survey as shown on Scheme No. M04-

008 attached as Exhibit A

6/22/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Gabriel Thomas Cepeda Cruz; 

12/5/1995

Gabrielle B. Cruz; 5/4/2017 

daughter x

Jane Almandres Cruz 10/26/1999 1:46 PM A portion of Lot 10171, Dededo 

containing an area of not more than one-

half (.50) acre subject to survey

7/29/2002 N/A (court 

oder 

DM1127-03)

Other Peter Borja Cruz; 10/26/1999 Jane Almandres Cruz; 

6/7/2005
spouse x

Mark Anthony Perez Cruz 8/5/1999 1:13 PM Lot 1, Block 1, Tract 19412, Mangilao 

containing an area of 924+/- square 

meters

8/5/2013 N/A Relinquishment of Lease 

prior to 7 years

Edward Ignacio Cruz Mark Anthony Perez Cruz; 

11/1/2012 Son

x - 2010 signed and  

Mark signed lease in 

2013

Natasha Nicole Duenas Cruz 12/5/1995 3:51 PM Lot 4, Block 6, Tract 1143, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters

7/18/2014 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

2) Maria Elenia Cruz Camacho;

2/17/2005, 1) Julia L. Cruz;

12/5/1995

Natasha Nicole Duenas 

Cruz; 8/6/2016 niece x

Tina Respicio De Guzman 12/5/1995 2:12 PM A portion of Lot 10171, Dededo 

containing an area of not more than one 

(1) acre subject to survey.

10/31/2008 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Ronald S. De Guzman; 

12/5/1995

Tina Respicio De Guzman; 

8/14/2007

spouse

x - 05/2003 

approved by JMB to 

ADD Tina R De 

Guzman, however, 

Ronald S De 

Guzman was 

removed completely

Arlene Pangelinan Duenas 12/2/1995 4:08 PM Lot 3, Block 3, Tract 9210 (Phase - 1), 

Yigo

1/13/2004 N/A Switch of Date & Time Kathy Pangelinan Briola; 

4/11/2008

Arlene Pangelinan Duenas; 

12/2/1995

sister
x

Betty C. Duque 4/11/2000 11:11 AM Lot 10122-88, Dededo containing an 

area of 2,023+/- square meters

1/27/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Mary Jane Cruz Tolentino; 

4/11/2000

Betty C. Duque; 9/10/2014

did not state x

Chelsea Nicole Tudela Eay 12/2/1995 10:49 AM Lot 5382N-34, Barrigada containing an 

area of 2,317+/- square meters subject 

to survey as shown on Scheme No. M04-

008 attached as Exhibit A

2/20/1998 N/A Switch of Date & Time Edward Matanane Quichocho; 

12/2/1995

Chelsea Nicole Tudela 

Eay;12/28/2016 

niece x

Charleen A. Evangelista 12/4/1995 4:29 PM Lot 7, Block 2, Tract 10126, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,853+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Scheme No. M05-020 attached as 

Exhibit A

7/11/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Norma S. Evangelista; 

12/4/1995

Charleen A. Evangelista; 

4/5/2017

daughter x

Christopher James Fejeran 12/7/1995 11:41:00 AM Lot 480-47, Agat containing an area of 

2,023+/- square meters subject to 

survey as shown on Subdivision Master 

Plan No. 2015-M02-3

9/27/2017 N/A Relinquished from original 

"B" (Josephine Rosario, 

common law of father)

1) Robert James Fejeran;

12/7/1995

1) Christopher James

Fejeran; 10/14/2016
Son

x - original "B" is 

ineligible

Aubrey Rose Sablan Flores 12/9/1995 1:20 PM Lot 8-33-2, Inarajan containing an area 

of 1,858+/- square meters

12/9/2015 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Gregorio C. Sablan; 12/09/1995 Aubrey Rose Sablan Flores 

1/02/2013
daughter x

Paul Mendiola Flores 12/20/1995 2:24 PM Lot 421-2, Talofofo containing an area 

of 15,598+/- square meters as shown on 

Subdivision Master Plan No. 2015-M11-

3

11/14/2001 N/A Relinquishment of Lease 

prior to 7 years

Jose Crisostomo Flores; 

4/24/2000

Paul Mendiola Flores

Son x - 7.5

Sandra Chargualaf Flores 12/2/1995 10:04 AM Lot 10, Block 8, Tract 9210 (Phase - I), 

Yigo containing an area of 971+/- 

square meters

8/1/2017 N/A Other David Joseph Borja (dec); 

10/17/1995

Sandra Chargualaf Flores; 

7/11/2017 daughter x - 5.8

CHamoru Land Trust Commission 2 / 6 Updated April 12, 2019



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
102 - Null and Void Leases

FULL NAME (TRANSFEREE) APP'N DATE APP'N TIME LOT DESCRIPTION
SIGNING 

DATE

TYPE OF 

TRANSFER 
REMARKS ON N/A'S

NAME & APPLICATION DATE 

OF TRANSFEROR

NAME & APPLICATION 

DATE OF TRANSFEREE

RELATIONSHIP 

BETWEEN 

TRANSFEROR & 

TRANSFEREE

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A SWITCH 

OF DATE AND 

TIME BETWEEN 

APPLICANTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO A 

BENEFICIARY 

WHO THEN IN 

TURN 

TRANSFERRED 

THOSE RIGHTS 

TO ANOTHER

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO AN 

INELIGIBLE 

BENEFICIARY

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

A BENEFICIARY 

WAS NOT 

DESIGNATED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

THE ORIGINAL 

APPLICANT DID 

NOT QUALIFY 

UNDER THE 

CHAMORU LAND 

TRUST ACT

NO TRANSFER 

APPLIED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

LEASE PRIOR TO 

THE 7 YEARS 

WITHOUT 

APPROVAL

TRANSFER IN 

ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE LAW

Stephanie J. B. Flores 12/5/1995 4:45 PM Lot 5382N-32, Barrigada containing an 

area of 2,023+/- square meters subject 

to survey as shown on Scheme No. M04-

008 attached as Exhibit A

9/11/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Patrick J. Flores; 12/5/1995 Stephanie J. B. Flores; 

3/5/2014

daughter x

Lorette Tenorio Guerrero 12/7/1995 10:44 AM Lot 19, Block 9, Tract 15213, Mangilao 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters

4/18/2017 N/A Switch of Date & Time Valerie T. Guerrero;  12/7/1995 Lorette Tenorio Guerrero; 

9/14/2007 sister x

Shayne Michael Guevara 12/9/1995 4:49 PM Lot 1-2, Block 5, Tract 18113, Mangilao 

containing an area of 2,156+/- square 

meters

7/26/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Craig Thomas Guevara; 

12/09/1995

Shayne Michael Guevara; 

5/09/2017 son x

Bennie Unsiog Guzman 12/4/1995 2:45 PM Lot 20, Block 11, Tract 10316, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,143+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Scheme No. M05-005 attached as 

Exhibit A

5/26/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Joaquin A.U. Guzman; 

12/4/1995

Bennie Unsiog Guzman; 

4/24/2018

brother x

Walter James Hattig Jr. 12/2/1995 1:31 PM Lot 5219-1-10, Barrigada containing an 

area of 1,858+/- square meters

5/8/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Arlene Yamanaka Hattig; 

12/2/1995

Walter James Hattig Jr.; 

5/17/2016 son x

Melody Ann Borja Hernandez 12/7/1995 10:15 AM Lot 8-33-17, Inarajan containing an area 

of 1,858+/- square meters

1/6/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Beverly Ann Laguana Borja; 

12/07/1995

Melody Ann Borja 

Hernandez; 9/01/2015
daughter x

Sheena-Marie Leon Guerrero 

Hernandez

12/2/1995 3:59 PM Lot 6-10, Block 1, Tract 1021, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters

8/23/2017 NA Relinquishment via 

Application

Julie Perez Leon Guerrero; 

12/2/1995

Sheena-Marie Leon Guerrero 

Hernandez; 7/17/2017 daughter x

Katrina Borja Hodges 12/12/1995 1:30 PM Lot 5219-1-11, Barrigada containing an 

area of 1,866+/- square meters

5/15/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Gerald L. Hodges; 12/12/1995 Katrina Borja Hodges

spouse x

Ansley Ezikel Jackson Jr 6/13/1996 12:35 PM Lot 13, Block 1, Tract 14411, Mangilao 

containing an area of 2,063+/- square 

meters

10/26/2016 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Jerome Andrew Jackson; 

6/13/1996

Ansley Ezikel Jackson Jr.; 

10/23/2015 nephew x

Rose Cruz Jessop 11/17/2011 12:10 PM A portion of Lot 7066, Yigo containing 

an area of not more than one (1) acre 

subject to survey

2/14/2012 N/A Other Aurelia Taitano Cruz (dec); 

3/22/99

Rose Cruz Jessop; 

11/17/2011 daughter x

Leetreica Flores Kakas 12/4/1995 1:22 PM Lot 25NEW-2, Block 9, Tract 15213, 

Mangilao containing an area of 2,205+/- 

square meters subject to survey as 

shown on Scheme No. M07-008 

attached as Exhibit A

4/12/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Rosenda Kakas Hurt; 

12/04/1995

Leetreica Flores Kakas; 

7/01/2015

niece x

Derrick Sablan Kowalski 12/2/1995 11:59 AM Lot 5382N-8, Barrigada containing an 

area of 1,845+/- square meters

4/4/2017 N/A Switch of Date & Time Kimberly Ann Sablan Kowalski; 

12/2/1995

Derrick Sablan Kowalski; 

6/10/2014
brother x

Carmencita Maria Pablo 

Laguana

12/7/1995 10:11 AM Lot 1-3, Block 5, Tract 18113, Mangilao 

containing an area of 2,156+/- square 

meters

3/15/2017 N/A Switch of Date & Time Carlos Tenorio Laguana; 

12/71995

Carmencita Maria Pablo 

Laguana; 3/5/1996 daughter x

Joseph Babauta Lastimoza 12/2/1995 10:26 AM Lot 10, Block 3, Tract 10314, Dededo 

containing an area of 929+/- square 

meters

9/4/2015 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Tricia Esteves Santos; 

12/02/1995

Joseph Babauta Lasstimoza; 

7/05/2012 spouse x

Regine Biscoe Lee 12/4/1995 12:24 PM Lot 5382N-10, Barrigada containing an 

area of 2,023+/- square meters

5/17/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Rosita Aguilo Biscoe; 12/4/1995 Regine Biscoe Lee; 

11/1/2016
daughter x

Christopher Dean Lujan 12/2/1995 1:12 PM Lot 8-33-8, Inarajan containing an area 

of 1,858+/- square meters

1/6/2016 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Sheila Marie Mendiola; 

12/02/1995

Christopher Dean Lujan; 

2/16/2015
did not state x

Vince Avery Millon Masga 12/2/1995 9:38 AM Lot 2, Block 11, Tract 10121, Yigo 

containing an area of 8,094+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Subdivision Master Plan No. 2015-M13-

4

8/29/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Ligaya Millon Masga; 12/2/1995 Vince Avery Millon Masga; 

6/19/2017

son x

Rudy Manibusan Matanane 6/3/1998 11:35 AM Lot 10148-1, Dededo containing an area 

of 32,376+/- square meters

9/18/2002 N/A Other Vicente Quintanilla Matanane; 

6/3/1998

Rudy Manibusan Matanane; 

7/4/2000
son x

Allan Michael Jose Mateo 12/9/1995 1:09 PM Lot 6, Block 25, Tract 9210 (Phase - II), 

Yigo containing an area of 1,859+/- 

square meters subject to survey as 

shown on Subdivision Master Plan No. 

2015-M13-1

5/24/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

2) Roland Earl Mateo;

4/15/2014, 2)Linda Marie

Mateo; 12/9/1995

Allan Michael Jose Mateo; 

4/15/2014

step-son x

Bryan Ross Evangelista 

Mendiola

12/2/1995 1:04 PM Lot 3, Block 11, Tract 10121, Yigo 

containing an area of 2,021+/- square 

meters

3/28/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

2) Michael Manibusan Ramos;

3/16/2016, 1) Diana Muna

Duenas; 12/2/1995

Bryan Ross Evangelista 

Mendiola; 5/17/2016

son-in-law

x-original applicant

transferred to an

ineligible, who then 

tranferred to son-in-

law.

Matilde Castro Mercado 12/4/1995 11:39 AM Lot 10122-56, Dededo containing an 

area of 2,023+/- square meters

10/3/2016 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Lola Wusstig Agero; 12/4/1995 Matilde Castro Mercado; 

9/17/2014
did not state x

Lucille Gumataotao Milliosa 12/9/1995 12:00 PM Lot 5-16, Block 2, Tract 1021, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Scheme No. M05-002 attached as 

Exhibit A

5/5/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Lucia Cruz Indalecio; 12/9/1995 Lucille Gumataotao Milliosa; 

4/27/2017

daughter x

Doris Sanchez Miyasaki 12/4/1995 8:41 AM Lot 8-NEW, Block 13, Tract 10125, 

Dededo containing an area of 4,046+/- 

square meters subject to survey as 

shown on Scheme No. M05-S031 

attached as Exhibit A

8/21/2002 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Ciriaco C. Sanchez; 12/4/1995 Doris Sanchez Miyasaki; 

7/23/2009

daughter

x

MaryJo Charfauros Moniz 12/11/1995 1:48 PM Lot 14, Block 10, Tract 9210 (Phase - 

1), Yigo containing an area of 948+/- 

square meters

5/5/2017 N/A Switch of Date & Time Alandro Cruz Moniz; 12/11/1995 Maryjo Charfauros Moniz; 

2/27/1998 daughter x

CHamoru Land Trust Commission 3 / 6 Updated April 12, 2019



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
102 - Null and Void Leases

FULL NAME (TRANSFEREE) APP'N DATE APP'N TIME LOT DESCRIPTION
SIGNING 

DATE

TYPE OF 

TRANSFER 
REMARKS ON N/A'S

NAME & APPLICATION DATE 

OF TRANSFEROR

NAME & APPLICATION 

DATE OF TRANSFEREE

RELATIONSHIP 

BETWEEN 

TRANSFEROR & 

TRANSFEREE

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A SWITCH 

OF DATE AND 

TIME BETWEEN 

APPLICANTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO A 

BENEFICIARY 

WHO THEN IN 

TURN 

TRANSFERRED 

THOSE RIGHTS 

TO ANOTHER

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO AN 

INELIGIBLE 

BENEFICIARY

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

A BENEFICIARY 

WAS NOT 

DESIGNATED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

THE ORIGINAL 

APPLICANT DID 

NOT QUALIFY 

UNDER THE 

CHAMORU LAND 

TRUST ACT

NO TRANSFER 

APPLIED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

LEASE PRIOR TO 

THE 7 YEARS 

WITHOUT 

APPROVAL

TRANSFER IN 

ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE LAW

Chrispyna Maria Muna 8/22/2008 10:00 AM Lot 8, Block 1, Tract 14411, Mangilao 

containing an area of 1,858+/- square 

meters

2/24/2014 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Maria Fejeran Muna; 8/22/2008 Chrispyna Maria Muna; 

9/17/2013

daughter

x

Ernie Borja Muna 12/2/1995 1:46 PM Lot 23, Block 1, Tract 15344, Mangilao 

containing an area of 1,860+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Scheme No. M07-S016 attached as 

Exhibit A

8/14/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Ernest Q. Muna; 12/2/1995 Ernie Borja Muna; 7/13/2017 son

x

Juan Diaz Muna 12/2/1995 1:00 PM Lot 480-71, Agat containing an area of 

4,047+/- square meters

8/23/2013 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Moises Diaz Muna; 12/2/1995 Juan Diaz Muna; 7/26/2012 son
x

Mavreen Jean Muna 9/23/1997 4:06 PM Lot 10125-11-5, Dededo containing an 

area of 4,047+/- square meters

8/1/2002 N/A Other 2)Lawrence Gene Mendiola

Muna; 7/14/2004, 1) Juan SA

Mendiola; 9/23/1997

Mavreen Jean Muna; 

8/14/2013

granddaughter x

Ryan Muna 12/12/1995 10:40 AM Lot 15, Block 15, Tract 11405, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,225+/- square 

meters

9/27/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Richard Concepcion Muna; 

12/12/1995

Ryan Muna; 1/30/2012 son

x

Tricia Marie Dela Cruz Muna 12/2/1995 4:20 PM Lot 4, Block 2, Tract 37306, Inarajan 

containing an area of 929+/- square 

meters

4/8/2013 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Frank San Nicolas Muna; 

12/2/1995

Tricia Marie Dela Cruz Muna; 

1/7/2013

daughter

x

Robin Rodel Nelson 12/2/1995 2:58 PM Lot 480-49-1, Agat containing an area of 

2,023+/- square meters subject to 

survey as shown on Scheme No. M02-

009 attached as Exhibit A

3/8/2018 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Sherilyn Flores Borja; 12/2/1995 Robin Rodel Nelson; 

9/12/2017

did not state

x

Bryan Jerome Montenegro 

Pablo

12/5/1995 11:57 AM Lot 16, Block 13, Tract 11405, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,460+/- square 

meters

2/13/2015 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Francis Arriola Pablo; 12/5/1995 Bryan Jerome Montenegro 

Pablo; 11/29/2012

son

x

Billy Steven Padrones 12/9/1995 11:22 AM Lot 1, Block 3, Tract 10125, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,000+/- square 

meters

6/29/2016 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Annie Cruz Sahagon; 12/9/1995 Billy Steven Padrones; 

3/19/2015 did not state x

Raymond Mesa Perez 12/5/1995 4:15 PM Lot 19, Block 12, Tract 11405, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,951+/- square 

meters

12/12/2013 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Lourdes Mesa Enriquez; 

12/5/1995

Raymond Mesa Perez; 

12/18/2012 grandson x

Glenna Tolentino Pitpit 12/4/1995 9:42 AM Lot 2, Block 2, Tract 18113, Mangilao 

containing an area of 2,268+/- square 

meters

10/31/2014 N/A Relinquishment of Lease 

prior to 7 years

Servia Degracia Tolentino; 

12/4/1995

Glenna Tolentino Pitpit daughter x

Sebastian R. Quenga, Jr. 1/31/2008 3:45 PM Lot 7, Block 4-A, Tract 15344, Mangilao 

containing an area of 1,974+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Subdivision Master Plan No. 2015-M07-

1

4/2/2018 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Sebastian Santos Quenga; 

1/31/2008

Sebastian R. Quenga, Jr.; 

9/24/2014

son x

Dan August Quichocho 12/5/1995 4:30 PM Lot 7151-48, Yigo containing an area of 

2,023+/- square meters subject to 

survey as shown on Subdivision Master 

Plan No. 2015-M13-12

7/3/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Carolyn Julie Quichocho 

12/5/1995

Dan August Quichocho 

8/16/2016

brother x

Ronald James Remotigue 4/25/1997 3:31 PM Lot 10120-R22, Parcel 39, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,995+/- square 

meters

1/15/2014 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Vivian June Remotigue; 

7/28/2010, Original Applicant 

Ronald Sarmento 

Remotigue;4/25/1997

Ronald James Remotigue; 

10/9/2012
son x

Tomas Cruz Reyes Jr. 12/2/1995 1:29 PM A portion of Lot 505-10, Merizo 

containing an area of not more than one-

half (.50) acre subject to survey

11/26/2003 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Rosa B. Gofigan 12/2/1995 Tomas Cruz Reyes Jr. 

9/25/2003 nephew x

Marilyn G. Rivera 12/2/1995 9:17 AM Lot 8, Block 3, Tract 10125, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,023+/- square 

meters as shown on Subdivision Master 

Plan No. 2015-M05-4

5/29/2007 N/A Switch of Date & Time Jessie Reyes Estrada; 

1/16/1996

Marilyn G. Rivera; 12/2/1995

niece x

Derek Jay Sablan 12/7/1995 10:41 AM Lot 5, Block 27, Tract 9210 (Phase - II), 

Yigo containing an area of 1,850+/- 

square meters subject to survey as 

shown on Subdivision Master Plan No. 

2015-M13-1

6/6/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Edith Marie Santos Sablan; 

12/7/1995

Derek Jay Sablan; 4/26/2017

son x

Michaela Marie Sablan 12/9/1995 1:16 PM Lot 19NEW-4, Block F, Tract 9, 

Barrigada containing an area of 2,040+/- 

square meters

10/6/2016 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Vincent Edward Sablan; 

12/9/1995

Michaela Marie Sablan; 

5/17/2015 daughter x

Vincent John Salas 12/4/1995 1:36 PM Lot 8-33-7, Inarajan containing an area 

of 1,858+/- square meters

10/2/2015 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Maria G. Salas; 12/4/1995 Vincent John Salas; 

10/8/2014
son x

Ana I. Salgado 12/2/1995 2:11 PM Lot 7, Block 1, Tract 10126, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,672+/- square 

meters

3/7/2017 N/A Switch of Date & Time Bobbie Jean Bautista; 

12/2/1995

Ana I. Salgado; 6/5/2008

aunt x

Frances Bernadette San 

Nicolas

1/9/1996 9:07 AM Lot 7, Block 13, Tract 1113, Dededo 

containing an area of 800+/- square 

meters

5/8/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Vicente K. Manglona; 1/9/1996 Frances Bernadette San 

Nicola; 12/2/1995 common law x

Justin Mansapit San Nicolas 12/2/1995 1:50 PM Lot 5382-17-3, Barrigada containing an 

area of 3,432+/- square meters

8/26/2016 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Melvin Guzman San Nicolas; 

12/2/1995

Justin Mansapit San Nicolas; 

8/27/2014 son x

Kurtis Edward Santos 12/4/1995 8:17 AM Lot 13, Block 1, Tract 10126, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,672+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Scheme No. M05-020 attached as 

Exhibit A

9/11/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Luanna Fejerang Dotts; 

12/4/1995

Kurtis Edward Santos; 

5/2/2017

son-in-law x

CHamoru Land Trust Commission 4 / 6 Updated April 12, 2019



CHamoru Land Trust Commission
102 - Null and Void Leases

FULL NAME (TRANSFEREE) APP'N DATE APP'N TIME LOT DESCRIPTION
SIGNING 

DATE

TYPE OF 

TRANSFER 
REMARKS ON N/A'S

NAME & APPLICATION DATE 

OF TRANSFEROR

NAME & APPLICATION 

DATE OF TRANSFEREE

RELATIONSHIP 

BETWEEN 

TRANSFEROR & 

TRANSFEREE

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A SWITCH 

OF DATE AND 

TIME BETWEEN 

APPLICANTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO A 

BENEFICIARY 

WHO THEN IN 

TURN 

TRANSFERRED 

THOSE RIGHTS 

TO ANOTHER

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS TO AN 

INELIGIBLE 

BENEFICIARY

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

A BENEFICIARY 

WAS NOT 

DESIGNATED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION 

RIGHTS IN WHICH 

THE ORIGINAL 

APPLICANT DID 

NOT QUALIFY 

UNDER THE 

CHAMORU LAND 

TRUST ACT

NO TRANSFER 

APPLIED

LEASES THAT 

WERE ISSUED 

AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

LEASE PRIOR TO 

THE 7 YEARS 

WITHOUT 

APPROVAL

TRANSFER IN 

ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE LAW

Taralyn V. Cabrera Santos 12/5/1995 1:34 PM Lot 5382-5-17, Barrigada containing an 

area of 1,903+/- square meters

3/28/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Roland Victor Santos; 

12/5/1995

Taralyn V. Cabrera Santos; 

9/24/2014
daughter

x - no "B" was 

issued, wife 

tranferred to 

daughter

Zina Marie Santos 12/11/1995 10:40 AM A portion of Lot 10120, Dededo 

containing an area not more than one 

(1) acre subject to survey.

1/2/2003 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Clark J. Santos; 12/11/1995 Zina Marie Santos; 

10/22/2002 spouse x

James Jesus Taga 12/9/1995 2:27 PM Lot 21, Block 11, Tract 10316, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,051+/- square 

meters

5/24/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Lori J. Taga; 12/9/1995 James Jesus Taga; 8/8/2016

brother x

Peter Lizama Taimanglo 12/11/1995 3:11 PM Lot 2-3, Tract 11406NEW, Dededo 

containing an area of 2,346+/- square 

meters subject to survey as shown on 

Scheme No. M05-012 attached as 

Exhibit A

6/5/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Juan Bayona Mesa; 12/11/1995 Peter Lizama Taimanglo; 

9/27/2001

friend x

Thomas Michael Talavera 12/2/1995 3:59 PM Lot 13, Block 3, Tract 10126, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,713+/- square 

meters

3/8/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Teresita Regina Talavera; 

12/2/1995

Thomas Michael Talavera; 

10/7/2016 son x

Tricia Flores Templo 12/2/1995 12:54 PM Lot 23, Block 15, Tract 10316, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,987+/- square 

meters

4/4/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

William Michael Flores; 

12/2/1995

Tricia Flores Templo; 

1/3/2005 granddaughter x

Zannah Kowalski Togawa 12/4/1995 8:47 AM Lot 5382N-7, Barrigada containing an 

area of 1,846+/- square meters

4/4/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

1) Louise Sablan Kowalski;

12/4/1995  2) 1) Joshua

Togawa; 5/29/2014

1) Joshua Togawa;

5/29/2014 2)  Zannah

Kowalski Togawa; 1/5/2017

1) son  2) sister

x

Carmen A. Torres 12/2/1995 2:53 PM Lot 4-11, Block 1A, Tract 1021, Dededo 

containing an area of 1,958+/- square 

meters

6/23/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Martha Duenas Cruz; 12/2/1995 Carmen A. Torres; 6/29/2016

did not state x

Kekoa James Tydingco 12/19/1995 10:00 AM Lot 19NEW-8, Block F, Tract 9, 

Barrigada containing an area of 2,039+/- 

square meters subject to survey as 

shown on the survey scheme attached 

as Exhibit A

5/5/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Phillip James Tydingco; 

12/19/1995

Kekoa James Tydingco; 

1/18/2017

son x

John Christopher Unpingco, 

Mark Andrew Unpingco and 

Meg-Anne Cecilia Unpingco

8/14/2001 10:12 AM Lot 10171-5, Dededo containing an area 

not more than one (1) acre subject to 

survey.

8/28/2002 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Pedro Guerrero Sablan (dec); 

8/14/2001

John Christopher Unpingco, 

Mark Andrew Unpingco and 

Meg-Anne Cecilia Unpingco 

(no application from these 

individuals)

children x

Bill John Miner Villagomez 12/4/1995 1:49 PM Lot 15, Block 4, Tract 9210 (Phase-1), 

Yigo containing an area of 1,318+/- 

square meters

4/22/2015 N/A Switch of Date & Time James Matthew San Nicolas; 

12/4/1995

Bill John Miner Villagomez; 

3/13/1995 did not state x

Ashley Brooke Yamanaka 12/4/1995 11:47 AM Lot 5219-1-9, Barrigada containing an 

area of 2,213+/- square meters

5/18/2017 N/A Relinquishment via 

Application

Janet Acquiningoc Yamanaka; 

12/4/1995

Ashley Brooke Yamanaka; 

5/5/2017

daughter
x

CHamoru Land Trust Commission 5 / 6 Updated April 12, 2019



CHamoru Land Trust Commission 

102 - Null and Void Leases

LEASES THAT WERE 

ISSUED AFTER A 

SWITCH OF DATE AND 

TIME BETWEEN 

APPLICANTS

LEASES THAT WERE 

ISSUED AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION RIGHTS

LEASES THAT WERE 

ISSUED AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION RIGHTS TO 

A BENEFICIARY WHO 

THEN IN TURN 

TRANSFERRED THOSE 

RIGHTS TO ANOTHER

LEASES THAT WERE 

ISSUED AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION RIGHTS 

TO AN INELIGIBLE 

BENEFICIARY

LEASES THAT WERE 

ISSUED AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION RIGHTS IN 

WHICH A BENEFICIARY 

WAS NOT DESIGNATED

LEASES THAT WERE 

ISSUED AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF 

APPLICATION RIGHTS IN 

WHICH THE ORIGINAL 

APPLICANT DID NOT 

QUALIFY UNDER THE 

CHAMORU LAND TRUST 

ACT

NO TRANSFER 

APPLIED

LEASES THAT WERE 

ISSUED AFTER A 

TRANSFER OF LEASE 

PRIOR TO THE 7 YEARS 

WITHOUT APPROVAL

TRANSFER IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH 

THE LAW

14 70 8 0 3 1 1 3 2

CHamoru Land Trust Commission  6 / 6 Updated April 12, 2019






